
` 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:  WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 15, 2012 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  PHARR CITY HALL  
  CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
  118 SOUTH CAGE BOULEVARD, 2nd FLOOR 
  PHARR, TEXAS 78577 

 
PRESIDING: DENNIS BURLESON, CHAIRMAN 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER FOR WORKSHOP 
 
1. Presentation by McAllen Economic Development Corporation on Overweight Truck Corridor Proposal 
2. Ethics & Compliance Training 

 
ADOURNMENT FOR WORKSHOP 

 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
1. REPORTS 

 
A. Update on SH 365 Financing – Jody Ellington, TxDOT 
B. Update on SH 365 Project – Louis Jones, Program Manager  

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body 

and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is 
desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. The Governing 
Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an 
Executive Session Item, at any time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Joint Workshop held July 17, 2012, Regular Meeting held July 18, 2012 and Special 

Meeting held August 2, 2012. 
B. Approval of Project Expense Report for Period from July 11, 2012 to August 7, 2012 
C. Approval of Financial Report for June 2012 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA  

 
A. Resolution 2012-26 – Approval of Dannenbaum Engineering Work Authorization Number 5 for continued 

Program Management of SH 365 Project. 
B. Resolution 2012-27 – Approval of Amendment to Financial Advisory Service Agreement with First Southwest 

to add a Level of Service Analysis for SH 365 and a Traffic Operation Analysis for US 281/US 83 Interchange 
as part of the Traffic and Revenue Update for SH 365, IBTC, Segment D and La Joya Relief Route. 

 
4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. Report on Texas Transportation Commission Meeting held July 26, 2012 
B. Report on Resolutions of Support for US 281/I-69 from Cameron County Commissioners Court and Cameron 

County Regional Mobility Authority 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Amendment to 2012-2017 Strategic Plan – Project Manager Strategy Number 8 to include environmental 

clearance and preliminary engineering of SH 365 from FM 396 to FM 1016 
 



` 

 
6. TABLED ITEMS 

 
A. Acceptance of Work Authorization No. 1 Report from Dannenbaum Engineering 

 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to Dannenbaum Engineering Work 

Authorization No. 1 (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
 

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY  
Public Comment Policy: “At the beginning of each HCRMA meeting, the HCRMA will allow for an open public 
forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one-half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 
allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak. All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to 
do so, prior to the open comment period. The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to 
address issues or topics that are under the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part 
of the posted agenda for the meeting, HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No 
action or discussion shall be taken on issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. 
Members of the public may be recognized on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items 
are considered, and the same time limitations (3 minutes) applies.” 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I, the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify that the attached agenda of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo 
County Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the 
general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 9th day of August, 2012 at 12:00 pm and will remain 
so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance with 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

                                 

        Flor E. Koll 
        Program Administrator 

 

 

 

Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Flor E. Koll at        
956-402-4762 at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

http://www.hcrma.net/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JOINT WORKSHOP HELD JULY 17, 2012, 

REGULAR MEETING HELD JULY 18, 2012, AND SPECIAL MEETING HELD AUGUST 2, 
2012.              

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of minutes for the Hidalgo Count Regional Mobility Authority  Board  

of Directors Joint Workshop held July 17, 2012, Regular Meeting held July 18, 2012, and  
Special Meeting held August 2, 2012.           

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Joint  
 Workshop held July 17, 2012, Regular Meeting held July 18, 2012, and Special Meeting  
  held August 2, 2012.               
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



` 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened at an Hidalgo County Commissioner 
Workshop held on Tuesday, July 17, 2012, at 9:30 am at the Edinburg City Hall, City Commission Chambers, 415 West 
University Drive, Edinburg, Texas, with the following present: 
 
Board Members: Dennis Burleson, Chairman  HCRMA 
   Michael G. Cano, Vice-Chair  HCRMA     

Joe Olivarez, Director   HCRMA 
   Forrest Runnels, Director  HCRMA 
   
 
Absent:   Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer HCRMA 
   David Guerra, Director   HCRMA 
   Alonzo Cantu, Director   HCRMA 
 
Staff:   Flor E. Koll    HCRMA 
   Dan Rios, Legal Counsel   HCRMA  
   Louis Jones, Program Manager  HCRMA 
   Richard Ramirez, Financial Advisor First Southwest 
 
WORKSHOP 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Chairman Burleson called the workshop to order. 
 
 

1. Presentation regarding Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority’s intent to pledge the Vehicle Registration 
Fees to incur additional debt in furtherance of Long Term Transportation Projects in Hidalgo County. 

 
Richard Ramirez, First Southwest, gave a presentation to the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court regarding the 
Vehicle Registration Fees and the Authority’s intent to pledge them to incur additional debt for SH 365, IBTC and 
Segment D.  No action Taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The workshop was adjourned at 10:00 am 
 
 
 
 
       
 Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 Attest 
 
 
       
 Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 



` 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened a Regular Meeting on Wednesday, July 18, 
2012, at 5:35 pm at the Pharr City Hall, City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage Blvd, 2nd Floor, Pharr, Texas, with the 
following present: 
 
Board Members: Dennis Burleson, Chairman  HCRMA 
   David Guerra, Director   HCRMA 
   Joe Olivarez, Director   HCRMA 
   Forrest Runnels, Director  HCRMA 
   Alonzo Cantu, Director   HCRMA 
 
Absent:   Michael G. Cano, Vice-Chairman  HCRMA 
   Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer HCRMA 
 
Staff:   Flor E. Koll    HCRMA 
   Dan Rios, Legal Counsel   HCRMA  
   Louis Jones, Program Manager  HCRMA 
 

WORKSHOP 
 
1. Presentation by C&M on Traffic and Revenue Study Process. 

Shahram Bohluli, C&M Associates, presented the draft Level 2 Traffic & Revenue update for the IBTC, SH 365 and 
Segment D. No action taken. 
 

CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 
Chairman Dennis Burleson called the meeting to order 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
1. REPORTS 

 
A. Update on Pass Through Projects – Jody Ellington, TxDOT 

Staff reported on the consolidation of Pass-Through Financing Agreements for SH 365, which is scheduled to 
be considered by the Texas Transportation Commission on July 26, 2012.  No action required.  
 

B. Update on SH 365 Project – Louis Jones, Program Manager  
Louis Jones gave a brief update on the SH 365 Project progress.  No action required.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body 
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is 
desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. The Governing 
Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an 
Executive Session Item, at any time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Meeting Act.) 
 
Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Joe Olivarez, to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 



` 

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held June 20, 2012 
B. Approval of Project Expense Report for Period from June 14, 2012 to July 10, 2012 
C. Approval of Financial Report for May 2012 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA  

 
A. Resolution 2012-23 – Extension of Financial Advisory Services Agreement with First Southwest Company 

Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Joe Olivarez, to approve the one year extension of the Financial 
Advisory Service Agreement with First Southwest Company.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. Report on TxDOT Workshop held June 27, 2012 

Chairman Dennis Burleson gave a brief summary of the workshop held in Austin with TxDOT and invited 
board members to attend the Texas Transportation Commission Meeting and the US 281 Coalition Meeting 
on July 27, 2012, both in Corpus Christi, Texas. No action taken.  
 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. Acceptance of Work Authorization No. 1 Report from Dannenbaum Engineering. 

No action taken.  
 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Alonzo Cantu, to enter into Executive Session pursuant to 
Chapter 551, Texas Govenmnet Code , Section 551.071 – Consultation with Attorney regarding item 6A. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chairman Burleson recessed the meeting at 6:45 pm to go into Executive Session.  Chairman Burleson 
reconvened the meeting at 6:53 pm with the following action taken on the Executive Session items: 
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to Dannenbaum Work Authorization No. 

1 (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
No action taken. 
 

B. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to Financial Advisory Services Agreement 
with First Southwest Company (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
No action taken.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



` 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 6:54 pm.  

 
 
 
 
 
      
Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
      
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 



` 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened a Workshop and a Special Meeting on 
Thursday, August 2, 2012, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage Blvd, 2nd Floor, 
Pharr, Texas, with the following present: 
 

Board Members:  Dennis Burleson, Chairman  HCRMA 
    Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer HCRMA 
    Joe Olivarez, Director   HCRMA 
    David Guerra, Director   HCRMA 
    

Absent:   Michael G. Cano, Vice-Chairman  HCRMA 
    Forrest Runnels, Director  HCRMA 
    Alonzo Cantu, Director   HCRMA 
 

Staff:   Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director HCRMA 
Flor E. Koll, Program Administrator HCRMA 

    Dan Rios, Legal Counsel   HCRMA  
    Louis Jones, Program Manager  HCRMA 
    Richard Ramirez, Financial Advisor First Southwest 
    Troy Madres, Financial Advisor  First Southwest 
 

WORKSHOP 
 
1. Presentation by First Southwest regarding Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority’s intent to pledge the 

Vehicle Registration Fees to incur additional debt in furtherance of Long Term Transportation Projects in Hidalgo 
County. 
Richard Ramirez and Troy Madres, First Southwest, made a presentation regarding the Vehicle Registration Fees. 
No action taken. 
 

2. Presentation by Dannenbaum and L&G Engineering on SH 365 alignment at the Anzalduas Bridge Crossing. 
Louis Jones, Program Manager, presented the various alignments of SH 365 at the Anzalduas Bridge Crossing. No 
action taken. 
 

3. Presentation by Dannenbaum Engineering on amendment to 2012-2017 Strategic Plan to include environmental 
clearance and preliminary engineering of SH 365 from FM 396 to FM 1016. 
Louis Jones, Program Manager presented on SH 365 alignment and on amendment to 2012-2017 Strategic Plan 
as it relates to extending the project limits from FM 396 to FM 1016 to include environmental clearance and 
preliminary engineering. Pilar Rodriguez, HCRMA Executive Director, recommended that the Board schedule a 
public hearing at the next regular meeting to receive public input on the proposed amendment. No action taken. 

         
CALL TO ORDER FOR SPECIAL MEETING 
 
Chairman Burleson called the meeting to order.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



` 

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Update on TxDOT Financing for SH 365 Project – Jody Ellington, TxDOT 
Mario Jorge reported on action taken by the Texas Transportation Commission at the July 26, 2012, meeting 
related to the Pass-Through Agreements for SH 365. No action taken. 
 

2. RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. Resolution 2012-24 – Amendment of 2012-2017 Strategic Plan to include environmental clearance of SH 365 
from FM 396 to FM 1016 
No action taken.  
 

B. Resolution 2012-25 – Authorizing Supplemental No. 1 to Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to amend termination date for Work Authorization No. 3 
Motion by Joe Olivarez, with a second by Ricardo Perez, to approve supplement number 1 to the 
professional service agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering for Work Authorization No. 3 extending 
the termination date to February 1, 2013. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
3. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. Report on Hidalgo County Commissioner’s Court Budget Workshop held July 17, 2012 

Chairman Burleson reported on the budget workshop held by the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court on 
July 17, 2012 as it relates to pledging the Vehicle Registration Fees to incur additional debt in furtherance of 
Transportation Projects in Hidalgo County. No action taken. 
 

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
The Board of Directors did not enter into Executive Session on any items. 
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to amendment of 2012-2017 Strategic 

Plan (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 6:54 pm.  
 
 

  
 
____________________________________________ 
Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT EXPENSE REPORT FOR JULY 11, 2012 

THROUGH AUGUST 7, 2012          
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project expense report for the period from July 11, 2012 to  

August 7, 2012.            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes        X   No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:   Vehicle Registration Fund Balance after Expenses $5,808,838.38 
    
   General Account     $  15,631.20 
   Loop Account      $364,954.12 
   Debt Service Account                $148,347.02 
   Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period  $528,932.34 

       
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project expense report for the period from   
 July 11, 2012 to August 7, 2012 as presented.        
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: August 8, 2012 

Re: Project Expense Report for the Period from July 11, 2012 to August 7, 2012 
  

Attached is the project expense report for the period commencing on July 11, 2012 and ending on 
August 7, 2012. 
 
Project expenses for the General Account total $15,631.2, Loop Account total $364,954.12, and for the 
Debt Service Account total $148,347.02. The aggregate expense for the reporting period is 
$528,932.34 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $528,932.34. 
 
This leaves a balance in the Vehicle Registration Fund after expenses of $5,808,838.38. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA EXPENSE REPORT

August 15, 2012

Code Invoice # Inv Date Make Check Payable to: Memo: Amount Ck #

16200.000 Salary for F.E. Koll

16200.000 Fringe

16200.000 Indirect

17150.000 Rent

17140.000 Wireless Connections

17220.000 AT&T

17220.000 Sprint - 

16600.000 Travel

LRGVDC -$                    

16660.000 2012002894 08/01/12 A Fast Delivery Courier Service 171.75$               

17310.000 07/30/12 The Alliance for I-69 I-69 Pins 100.00$               

16620.000 72412 07/24/12 City of Pharr Record Meeting 175.00$               

16200.000 14 07/11/12 City of McAllen PR Payroll 8,655.16$            

16600.000 07/31/12 Flor E. Koll Travel - Mileage 155.40$               

17000.000 11816 07/20/12 One Stop Staffing Temp Services 198.60$               

17210.000 1 08/01/12 Pena Designs Website Maint 150.00$               

16600.000 07/27/12 Pilar Rodriguez Travel-TxDOT Mtg 216.29$               

17200.000 96099 07/10/12 Salinas Allen Schmitt June Services 850.00$               

17100.000 10505 08/06/12 Tuggey Fernandez, LLP July Services 4,959.00$            

15,631.20$          

Code Invoice # Inv Date Make Check Payable to: Memo: Amount

28000 1145427 7/17/2012 Atkins SH365 19,931.82$          

27100.000 Law Office of Daniel G. Rios -$                    

28000.000 4652-01/09/XV 8/2/2012 Dannenbaum Work Auth #4 163,649.99$        

28000.000 6763 7/26/2012 First Southwest C&M (T&R Study LJRR) 18,849.05$          

28000.000 6764 7/26/2012 First Southwest C&M (T&R Study A&B) 41,935.40$          

28000.000 11324224 7/31/2012 L&G SH 365 WA #1 110,921.36$        

27100.000 10512 08/07/12 Tuggey Fernandez, LLP July Services 9,666.50$            

HCRMA Reimburse GA (Aug) 3,649.54$            

364,954.12$        

Vehicle Registration (Account No. 280003617)

Code Invoice # Inv Date Make Check Payable to: Memo: Amount

33000.000 Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 148,347.02$        

Debt Service (Account No. 280003862)

Code Loan # Inv Date Make Check Payable to: Memo: Amount

47320.000 1286007585 First National Bank 148,347.02$        

Total 528,932.34$   

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer

Dennis Burleson, Chairman Approval Date

General Account (Account No. 28003536)

Loop Account (Account No. 280003609)











  

 

City of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllen

Memorandum

To: Flor E. Koll

From: Belia Villarreal

Payroll Manager

Date:

Re: Payroll for Pilar Rodriguez and Flor E. Koll

Please submit a check in the amount of to the Finance Department.  This 

is to cover the following:  through

The following is a breakdown:

RA Salary

RB Overtime 

RC Medicare

RD FICA

RE TMRS

RF TWC

RG Group Term Life Ins

RH Health Insurance Emp plus Fam 213.16

RI Workers Compensation

Total amount invoiced for:

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 956-681-1041.

Thank you.

1.82

0.00

8,655.16$                

0.00

105.90

463.76

390.46

0.00

July 11, 2012

8,655.16$                    

payroll from 6/25/2012 7/8/2012

7,480.06

fkoll
Typewritten Text
Payroll 14

fkoll
Typewritten Text

fkoll
Typewritten Text











Peña Designs                                                                                                            INVOICE 
P.O. Box 9572                      
Huntsville, TX 77340                    Invoice #01 
Phone (956) 655-9790                     Date: August 1, 2012 
penadesigns@gmail.com                                                                                                                                 
 
TO:                                                                                                            FOR: 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority                                          Website Maintenance 
P.O. Box 1766 
Pharr, TX 78577   
 

SERVICES AMOUNT 

July 1-31, 2012 
10 hours total for website maintenance 
 10 hours at $15.00 per hour 

$150.00 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL DUE $150.00 

 

Make all checks payable to Peña Designs 
Payment is due within 30 days. 
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact  
Eric Peña 
(956)655-9790 
penadesigns@gmail.com 
 
Thank you for your business! 





























































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2C 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2012  
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of June 2012.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes        X   No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the Month of June  

 2012 as presented.                
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 









































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3A 



 
 

 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   3A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2012-26 – APPROVAL OF DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING  

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 5 FOR CONTINUED PROGRAM MANAGEMENT OF SH  
365 PROJECT            

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of a Work Authorization Number 5 for continued Program   

Management of SH 365 Project.          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes        X   No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:   Loop Fund    
  

Maximum amount payable    $5,000,000.00   (100%) 
   Work Authorization No. 1   ($   909,960.63)  (18.19%) 
   Work Authorization No. 2 (cancelled) ($              0.00)   (    0%) 
   Work Authorization No. 3   ($     57,750.00)  (1.16%) 
   Work Authorization No. 4   ($   891,814.61)  (17.84%) 
   Work Authorization No. 5 (proposed) ($   787,369.93)  (15.75%) 
   Maximum fee balance     $2,353,104.83   (47.06%) 
    
    Total authorized for WA 1, 3 & 4   $1,859,525.24 
    Payments to date for WA 1, 3 & 4  ($1,468,362.59) 
    Work Authorization balance    $   391,162.65 
 
    

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2012-26 approving Dannenbaum  
Work Authorization Number 5 in the amount of $787,369.93, leaving a maximum fee  
balance of $2,353,104.83.              

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       *   None 
  
 * On August 7, 2012, the Planning Committee recommended deferring this item to the full Board for 

consideration. 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: August 7, 2012 

Re: Dannenbaum Engineering Work Authorization Number 5   

At the October 27, 2011, regular meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service agreement for 
general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum Engineering in the maximum payable 
amount of $5,000,000. Subsequently, the Board has approved Work Authorizations No. 1, 3 and 4 in the amounts 
of $909,960.63, $57,750.00 and $891,814.61 respectively. Work Authorization No. 1 was to review prior 
engineering, surveying, environmental and permitting work provided to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority (HCRMA), Work Authorization No. 3 was to provide title reports for the SH 365, and Work Authorization 
No. 4. was to update the new Executive Director, oversee the update of T&R study, oversee environmental 
clearance/preliminary design of SH 365 and oversee various other tasks related to SH 365. Work Authorization 
No. 2 was cancelled by the Board. 
 
Dannenbaum’s tasks under Work Authorization No. 5 continue the Program Management for SH 365 and include 
the following: 
 
Coordinate with the Executive Director 
Attend meetings with the HCRMA, County Commissioners Court, TxDOT and MPO 
Coordinate with Hidalgo County Appraisal District on TRZ agreements 
Implement public outreach with 4 jurisdictions 
Oversee C&M Associates’ update of the T&R study 
Oversee environmental clearance of SH 365 and review schematics/drainage 
Oversee environmental clearance of US 281 and development of route study and schematics 
Implement GIS for parcel identification and tracking for acquisition 
Implement ProjectWise for tracking of all SH 365 project activity (i.e. design, correspondence, billing, etc.) 
 
The engineer’s level of effort to perform these tasks was also evaluated and calculated to equate to 15.75% of the 
maximum amount payable to Dannenbaum for program management and engineering. 
 
At the August 7, 2012, the Planning Committee recommended that this item be referred to the fully Board of 
Directors for consideration. 
 
Based on review by this office, approval of Work Authorization No. 5 is recommended to Dannenbaum 
Engineering in the amount of $787,369.93, leaving a maximum fee balance of $2,353,104.83. 
 
I have attached the engineer’s proposed scope and level of effort for the proposed work order for your review and 
consideration. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2012 – 26 
 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 5 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION 

FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT OF SH 365 PROJECT 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of August, 2012 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County;  
 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000;  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved work authorizations numbers 1, 3 

and 4 in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00 and $891,814.61 respectively; 
 
WHEREAS, to continue Program Management of SH 365 Project, Work Authorization 

Number 5 has been prepared by Danennbaum Engineering and reviewed by HCRMA Staff;  
 
WHEREAS, HCRMA staff has negotiated Work Authorization Number 5 in the amount 

of $787,369.93; 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve Work Authorization 

Number 5 to continue Project Management and Advance Project Development for SH 365; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves the Work Authorization Number 5 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Work Authorization 
Number 5 as approved. 
 
 
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
SPECIAL MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of August, 2012, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

WORK AUTHORIZTION NUMBER 5 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   3B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
2. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2012-27 – APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO FINANCIAL  

ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH FIRST SOUTHWEST TO ADD A LEVEL OF  
SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR SH 365 AND A TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ANALYSIS FOR US  
281/US 83 INTERCHANGE AS PART OF THE TRAFFIC AND REVENUE UPDATE FOR SH  
365, IBTC, SEGMENT D AND LA JOYA RELEIF ROUTE.       

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of an amendment to add a Level of Service Analysis for SH 365  

and a Traffic Operations Analysis for US 281/US 83 Interchange as part of the Traffic &   
Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC, Segment D and La Joya Relief Route.      

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Transportation Code, TxDOT  

Policy              
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes        X   No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:   Loop Fund     
    
     Original Amendment Amount for T&R Study  $426,004.00 
   SH 365 Level of Service Analysis    $  69,519.00    
   US 281/US 83 Interchange Operations Analysis $  78,706.00 
      Proposed Revised Total $148,225.00 
        
        

 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to recommend approval of amendment to Financial   
 Advisory Service Agreement with First Southwest in the amount of $148, 225.00 for a  
 Level of Service Anaylysis for SH 365 and a Traffic Operations Analysis for US 281/US 83  
 Interchange as part of the Traffic and Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC, Segment D and  
 the La Joya Relief Route.              
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: August 8, 2012 

Re: Amendment to First Southwest Financial Advisory Agreement    

At the March 28, 2012, regular meeting, the Board of Directors authorized First Southwest to perform updates to 
the Traffic and Revenue (T&R) Studies for SH 365, IBTC, Segment D and the La Joya Relief Route. 
 
In addition to the T&R model, the Program Manager and C&M are requesting authorization to perform a Level of 
Service Analysis on SH 365 and a Traffic Operations Analysis on the US 281/US 83 Interchange as part of the 
T&R update.  
 
The level of service analysis for SH  365 is recommended to further optimize the revenues projected to be 
generated by the project by reviewing sub-segments within the project to determine if all infrastructure 
components (i.e. ramps, ultimate width bridges, etc.) are necessary and justified during the initial construction of 
the project. The traffic operations analysis of the US 281/US 83 Interchange is recommended to determine when 
the IBTC and Segment D will be necessary to relieve the interchange. This timeline for the two project also impact 
SH 365. 
  
C&M’s level of effort to perform these additional tasks is $148,225.00.  
 
Additionally, on August 7, 2012, the Planning Committee met and recommended approval of this amendment. 
 
Based on review by this office, acceptance of the assumptions for the Traffic & Revenue and approval of the 
SH 365 Level of Service Analysis and US 281/US 83 Traffic Operations Analysis in the amount of  
$148,225.00 is recommended. 
 
I have attached the C&M’s proposed scope and cost for the proposed work order for your review and 
consideration. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2012 – 27 

  
AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH FIRST SOUTHWEST COMPANY TO INCLUDE A LEVEL OF 
SERVICE ANALYSIS OF SH 365 AND TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ANALYSIS 

OF US 281/US 83 INTERCHANGE AS PART OF THE TRAFFIC AND 
REVEUNE STUDY FOR SH 365, IBTC, SEGMENT D AND LA JOYA 

RELIEF ROUTE 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of August, 2012 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2009 the Authority entered into a Financial Advisory Services 

Agreement with First Southwest Company to advise the Authority regarding financial issues 
affecting the Authority and its operations and regarding the issuance and sale of all evidence of 
indebtedness or debt obligation that may be authorized and issued or otherwise created or 
assumed by the Authority from time to time during the period the Agreement is in effect;  

 
WHEREAS, on March 28, 2012 the Authority amended the Financial Advisory Services 

Agreement with First Southwest Company to include a Traffic and Revenue Study for SH 365, 
IBTC, Segment D and the La Joya Relief Route in the amount of $426,004.00; 

 
WHEREAS, First Southwest has prepared a proposal to conduct a Level of Service 

Analysis of SH 365 and a Traffic Operations Analysis of US 281/US 83 Interchange as part of 
the Traffic and Revenue Study to further develop optimum traffic and revenue projections for the 
various projects in the amount of $148,225.00; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is necessary to include a Level of Service 

Analysis of SH 365 and a Traffic Operations Analysis of the US 281/US 83 Interchange as part 
of the Traffic and Revenue Study;  

 
 
 
 
 
 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves an amendment to the Financial Advisory Services 
Agreement with First Southwest Company hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Amendment to the 
Financial Advisory Services Agreement with First Southwest as approved. 
 
 

***** 
 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of August, 2012, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
              
      Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

AMENDMENT TO FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
FIRST SOUTHWEST COMPANY 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Date: 

 

June 25, 2012 

To: 

 

 

Mr. Louis Jones, P.E. 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

1109 Nolana Loop, Suite 208 

McAllen Texas 78504  

 

Subject: SH 365 Corridor - Levels of Service Analysis 

 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING: 

SH 365 is proposed as a four lane limited access highway and is expected to open to traffic in 2017. It is 

about 13 mile long. As shown in Figure 1, it will connect Pharr-Reynosa International Bridge and 

Anzalduas International Bridge with Foreign Trade Zone and other industrial areas in southern Hidalgo 

County. SH 365 improves the mobility in east – west direction in this area. SH 365 is expected to open in 

2017. International Bridge Trade Corridor, another part of Hidalgo County Loop, connects SH 365 near 

Dicker Road and extends to US 83 east of FM 907. This road is expected to open in 2019. Opening of 

IBTC is expected to increase traffic on SH 365 because IBTC and SH365 together will increase mobility 

in the east-west direction. 

C&M understands that Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority intends to evaluate the advantages 

and disadvantages of providing accesses to each of the roadways intersected by SH 365. There is a cost 

corresponding to building each interchange. So, it is necessary to study the need of each interchange. 

Traffic demand at each interchange will provide an estimate of the need for that interchange. As part of 

justification of the interchanges, level of service (LOS) at the interchange is evaluated. An evaluation of 

levels of service (LOS) on all sections of the toll road as well as the at grade intersections on the 

intersecting streets is proposed. 

This analysis will include: 

 LOS analysis for all SH 365 mainlanes and ramp junctions using Highway Capacity Software. 

 LOS analysis for all at grade intersections at all interchanges along SH 365. 

C&M’S QUALIFICATIONS: 

C&M performed an investment grade traffic and revenue study for IBTC and TCC (now SH 365) in 

2010. Currently, C&M is performing a level 2 Traffic and Revenue Study for three segments of the 

Hidalgo County Loop - SH 365, IBTC and Segment D. 

 

Proposal 

Tollway Towers North, Suite 870 

15770 North Dallas Parkway 

Dallas, TX   75248 
Shahram Bohluli, Ph.D., PE 

Vice President 
Tel: 214-245-5300   

Fax: 214-889-5049 

 
 

Email: sbohluli@candm-associates.com 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, P.E. 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

1109 Nolana Loop, Suite 208 

McAllen Texas 78504  

 

June 25, 201 

2 

SH 365 Corridor - Levels of Service Analysis 

 

C&M staff has experience and expertise to perform the LOS analysis proposed for the SH 365 project. 

C&M staff has successfully performed similar analyses for several other projects in the State of Texas.  

 

Figure 1. SH 365 Project Alignment 

SCOPE OF THE WORK: 

1. Project Management 

Upon receiving the Notice to Proceed, the Project Manager will schedule a project kick-off meeting 

with key stakeholders to gain consensus on overall project methodology and data requirements 

established in this scope of work. Based on this meeting, the Project Manager will revise this scope of 

work and develop a Project Control Plan, outlining the identified project stakeholders, specific project 

procedures, project methodology, data collection needs, schedule, and project contact information. 

Upon identification of project stakeholders, the Project Manager will issue a notice to such 

stakeholders regarding project commencement and will request assistance in gathering existing data, 

when applicable.  



Mr. Louis Jones, P.E. 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

1109 Nolana Loop, Suite 208 

McAllen Texas 78504  

 

June 25, 201 

3 

SH 365 Corridor - Levels of Service Analysis 

Deliverable: Project Control Plan (PCP) within first 1 week following the kick off meeting, Progress 

reports and meeting minutes, when applicable. 

2. Existing information review:  

C&M will review the following existing information: 

 TxDOT Traffic maps for the recent years. 

 Traffic count data available from TxDOT permanent traffic count locations. 

 All the available traffic counts on intersecting streets. C&M collected traffic counts on all the 

major north-south streets in May 2012. 

 Traffic forecast on SH 365 developed by C&M in earlier studies. 

 Latest Schematics available for the SH 365 project, including configuration of interchanges with 

the cross streets. 

3. Data collection:   

C&M does not anticipate collecting new traffic data as part of this project. C&M will utilize traffic 

counts collected in May 2012 on north-south streets intersected by SH 365, as necessary.  

4. Traffic projections:   

The LOS analysis will be performed for three model years – First year after traffic ramp-up (2025), 

intermediate year (2035) and last forecast year (2057). LOS analysis requires traffic volumes on all 

the roadway links analyzed. Intersection turning movements are necessary to analyze the LOS of 

intersections with the north-south roadways. C&M uses the Hidalgo-Cameron Travel Demand Model 

(HCTDM) to model the travel demand on the tolled HC Loop segments as part of its level 2 traffic 

and revenue study. C&M has developed time-of-day model with demand estimates for AM, Mid-day 

and PM peak periods. C&M will utilize the traffic volumes and turning movements forecasted in this 

HCTDM for this LOS analysis. Balanced AM and PM peak hour volumes required for the LOS 

analysis will be developed by applying necessary adjustment factors to the peak period demands 

obtained from the model. Traffic growth forecasted in the traffic and revenue study will be used to 

develop volumes for 2057. 

5. Levels of Service Analysis: 

C&M will perform LOS analyses of main lanes, ramps, intersections/interchanges, direct connects 

and other access points of proposed SH 365 corridor utilizing traffic projections developed for the 

project. C&M will use the traffic projections to perform traffic analyses for the year after traffic 

ramp-up (2025), intermediate year (2035) and last forecast year (2057). C&M will analyze each 

freeway segment of the corridor for operational LOS in accordance with the methodologies of 

Highway Capacity Manual.  

 



Mr. Louis Jones, P.E. 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

1109 Nolana Loop, Suite 208 

McAllen Texas 78504  

 

June 25, 201 

4 

SH 365 Corridor - Levels of Service Analysis 

 

The traffic analysis will address the following components: 

 Basic Freeway Segment analysis 

 Ramp junction (freeway merge and diverge segment) analysis 

 Weaving segment analysis 

 Intersection/interchange analysis 

The traffic and capacity analyses for the freeway shall be performed using the latest version of the 

Highway Capacity Software (HCS), which is based on the methodologies of the latest edition of 

Highway Capacity Manual (HCM 2010). The LOS analysis for the intersections with cross streets 

will be performed using SYNCHRO software. Upon completion of the LOS analysis, the results will 

be tabulated and included in the report.  

C&M will perform freeway and LOS analysis as discussed above for the current schematic design for 

the SH 365 project. Analysis of additional alternatives and scenarios, if required, will be performed as 

part of supplemental work authorization after consultation with the client. 

6. Documentation: 

At the end of the analysis, a report will be submitted including each component of the study. The 

report will include the following: 

 Review of existing information 

 Data collection and analysis 

 Level of service analysis methodology 

 Analysis results 

 Conclusions and recommendations 

SCHEDULE AND FEES 

Schedule 

The schedule of this study will depend on the availability of traffic forecasts from the ongoing 

Intermediate level T&R study for IBTC, TCC, Segment D. Traffic forecasts are expected to be available 

in the month of August 2012. As a result, C&M proposes to start the study in the first week of August and 

estimates to finish in four weeks after beginning. 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, P.E. 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

1109 Nolana Loop, Suite 208 

McAllen Texas 78504  

 

June 25, 201 

5 

SH 365 Corridor - Levels of Service Analysis 

 

Fees 

A table presenting the fee for the proposed SH365 corridor LOS analysis including all direct cost is 

provided next. 

 

 

 

 

LABOR
Task 1 Project Management $9,492

Task 2 Existing Information Review $9,464

Task 3 Data Collection $2,914

Task 4 Traffic Projections $15,099

Task 5 Level of Service Analysis $17,218

Task 6 Documentation $14,331

Total Labor $68,519

DIRECT EXPENSES *

C&M Associates
Travel $1,000

  Total C&M $1,000 $1,000

Sub consultants
Filed Work and Surveys

Data Collection $0
Total Direct Cost $0

Total Expenses (includes sub consultants) $1,000

Total Cost for Project $69,519
*Direct expenses are estimates. Client will be billed at actual cost.



 

Date: 

 

July 7, 2012 

To: 

 

 

Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

Subject: US83/US281 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

 

 

 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING: 

C&M is currently under the process of developing a traffic and revenue study for the Hidalgo County 

Loop (HC Loop) including SH365, IBTC and Segment D. As part of the study, C&M did a preliminary 

analysis of travel times savings afforded by the proposed loop when compared to an alternative free route. 

For the analysis, C&M used the Pharr Bridge at US-Mexico border and Foreign Trade Zone (FTZ) as the 

origins and US 281 north of City of Edinburg as the destination. Two alternative trips – one using a free 

route and another using the tolled route on proposed HC Loop as shown in Figure 1 below were used. 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Proposal 

Tollway Towers North, Suite 870 

15770 North Dallas Parkway 

Dallas, TX   75248 
Shahram “Sam” Bohluli, Ph.D., P.E. 

Vice President 
Tel: 214-245-5300   

Fax: 214-889-5049 

 
 

Email: sbohluli@candm-associates.com 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

July 7, 201 

 

2 

US281/US83 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

Proposal by C&M 

Trip 1: Pharr Bridge to North of Edinburg

O D Route
Distance 

(mi)

Time 

(min)
Toll ($)

Pharr 

Bridge

North of 

Edinburg
Tolled 35.6 28 $12.80

Pharr 

Bridge

North of 

Edinburg
Toll Free 22.5 40 $0.00

12 min

13.1 miles

$18

Total cost 

(toll+$0.40/mile 

operating cost)

Extra distance

Time Saved

 

Trip 2: FTZ to North of Edinburg

O D Route
Distance 

(mi)

Time 

(min)
Toll ($)

FTZ
North of 

Edinburg
Tolled 38.5 31 $14.00

FTZ
North of 

Edinburg
Toll Free 21.7 34 $0.00

3 min

16.8 miles

$21

Total cost 

(toll+$0.40/mile 

operating cost)

Extra distance

Time Saved

 
 

Figure 1. Comparison of Travel Time and Cost between O-D pairs 

The analysis is done with 2030 model. For this model, maximum speed on US 281 is assumed as 65 mph 

while maximum speed on HC Loop is assumed as 75 mph. Operating cost for trucks is calculated as sum 

of fuel cost and maintenance and repair cost. Average fuel efficiency maintenance and repair cost are 

assumed as 10mpg and 10cents/mile, respectively. Fuel price is assumed as $3/gallon. Toll on HC Loop is 

assumed as 10 cents/mile.  The macro model used in this analysis does not consider any additional 

operational delay at US 281 – US 83 interchange. Only 5-axle trucks are considered in this analysis. 

The exhibits in Figure 1 show the two alternative routes and the difference in distance, travel time and toll 

on each path for the two trips.  

 

As seen in the tables, HC Loop does not provide significant time savings for trucks going north. Segment 

D does not provide a good alternative because trucks must travel additionally about 13 miles in trip 1 and 

about 17 miles in trip 2 when they use HC Loop. When a 40 cents/mile operating cost is assumed, trucks 

need to pay a toll of about $18 to $20.  

 

US281/US83 interchange is a critical junction for the entire HC Loop study area. C&M’s projections 

from previous studies show congestion at the interchange in the model year 2035. The stakeholders for 

the HC Loop and local transportation planners anticipate that US 281/US 83 interchange will be severely 

congested in the future. In that case, the HC Loop may become more attractive to users. To verify if this 

expectation is reasonable, the future level of service and delay at the interchange must be studied. 

Therefore, C&M proposes to conduct a study analyzing the existing and future traffic operations of the 

US281/US83 interchange utilizing a microsimulation model as described in detail under the scope of the 

study. Figure 2 presents the location map showing US281/US283 Interchange and surrounding roadway 

network. 

 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

July 7, 201 

 

3 

US281/US83 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

Proposal by C&M 

 
Figure 2. Location Map showing US281/US83 Interchange in Hidalgo County 

 

C&M’S QUALIFICATIONS: 

C&M performed an investment grade traffic and revenue study for IBTC and TCC (now SH 365) in 

2010. Currently, C&M is performing a level 2 Traffic and Revenue Study for three segments of the 

Hidalgo County Loop - SH 365, IBTC and Segment D. 

 

C&M staff has performed numerous studies involving traffic operations analysis for arterial and freeways. 

C&M staff has experience and proficiency using macro and micro simulation software to perform the 

proposed traffic operations analysis for the US281/US83 Interchange. C&M staff has successfully 

performed similar analyses for several other projects in the State of Texas.  

 

 

SCOPE OF THE WORK: 

The scope of work for the proposed traffic operations study is outlined below. The study limits on US 281 

would be Polk Avenue to the south and Sioux Road to the north. The study limits on US 83 would be 

BUS 83 to the west and North I Road to the east. 

 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

July 7, 201 

 

4 

US281/US83 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

Proposal by C&M 

1. Project Management 

Upon receiving the Notice to Proceed, the Project Manager will schedule a project kick-off meeting 

with key stakeholders to gain consensus on overall project methodology and data requirements 

established in this scope of work. Based on this meeting, the Project Manager will revise this scope of 

work and develop a Project Control Plan, outlining the identified project stakeholders, specific project 

procedures, project methodology, data collection needs, schedule, and project contact information. 

Upon identification of project stakeholders, the Project Manager will issue a notice to such 

stakeholders regarding project commencement and will request assistance in gathering existing data, 

when applicable.  

Deliverable: Project Control Plan (PCP) within first 1 week following the kick off meeting, Progress 

reports and meeting minutes, when applicable. 

2. Existing information review:  

C&M will review the following existing information: 

 TxDOT Traffic maps for the recent years. 

 Traffic count data available from TxDOT permanent traffic count locations. 

 All the available traffic counts on intersecting streets, including traffic data collected by C&M in 

the vicinity of the project in May 2012. 

 Traffic forecast and V/C ratios for the US281/US83 interchange from the Travel Demand Model 

developed by C&M in earlier studies. 

3. Data collection:   

C&M proposes to collect 48-hr classification counts on freeway ramps, mainlanes, direct connectors, 

and cross street arterials in the vicinity of the Interchange. Manual turning movement counts will be 

collected at signalized cross street intersections during the AM and PM Peak Periods. The traffic 

counts will be used to develop directional balanced AM and PM peak hour volumes for use in 

calibration of the microsimulation model for the existing conditions and to develop future traffic 

projections.  

4. Traffic projections:   

C&M will develop balanced directional traffic projections for the AM and PM peak hour for use in 

the traffic operations analysis for the Interchange. Existing AM and PM peak hour turning movement 

counts collected at the signalized intersections and roadway links will be used in the process. Once a 

network with balanced peak hour volumes for the count year 2012 is developed, traffic projections for 

two future years (2025 and 2035) will be developed by projecting the 2012 volumes using the 

appropriate growth rate from the travel demand model. The time-of-day model developed by C&M 

for previous projects will be used as cross check to validate the peak hour projections. The peak hour 

volumes will be used to perform traffic analysis for the interchange using the microsimulation model 

VISSIM.  

5. Traffic Operations Analysis: 

C&M will perform traffic operations analyses for US281 and US83 main lanes, ramps, direct 

connectors, as well as intersections/interchanges with the arterial streets within the study limits, 

utilizing the detailed traffic projections developed for the project. C&M will use existing geometry of 



Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

July 7, 201 

 

5 

US281/US83 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

Proposal by C&M 

the interchange and surrounding roadway network obtained from current aerial photography and field 

reconnaissance for traffic operations analysis for existing year 2012 and future years 2025 and 2035. 

C&M will utilize measures of effectiveness (MOEs) such as travel time and delay to measure levels 

of service of various individual roadway segments, signalized intersections, as well as and 

predetermined routes utilizing the US281/US83 interchange.  

The traffic operation analyses shall be performed using the microsimulation software VISSIM. The 

measures of effectiveness obtained from the VISSIM model will be analyzed, tabulated and included 

in the final report.  

C&M will perform the operational analysis as discussed above for the existing roadway geometry 

within the project limits. Analysis of additional alternatives and scenarios, if required, will be 

performed as part of supplemental work authorization after consultation with the client. 

6. Documentation: 

At the end of the analysis, a report will be submitted including each component of the study. The 

report will include the following: 

 Review of existing information 

 Data collection and analysis 

 Methodology for traffic projections and traffic operations analysis. 

 Traffic operations analysis results 

 Conclusions and recommendations 

 

SCHEDULE AND FEES 

Schedule 

The findings from this study will be incorporated into the analysis for the intermediate traffic and revenue 

study for the HC Loop currently being performed by C&M. For this reason, it would be necessary to 

synchronize the schedule for this study with the schedule of the Traffic and Revenue Study. As a result, 

C&M proposes to start the study in the third week of July 2012 and estimates to finish with in six weeks 

after beginning. The proposed project schedule is presented in Table 1. 

 

Table 1. Project Schedule 

Task Description wk1 wk2 wk3 wk4 wk5 wk6

1 Project Management

2 Existing Information Review

3 Data Collection

4 Traffic Projections

5 Traffic Operations Analysis

6 Documentation  
 

 



Mr. Louis Jones, PE 

Vice President 

Dannenbaum Engineering 

 

July 7, 201 

 

6 

US281/US83 Interchange – Traffic Operations Analysis 

Proposal by C&M 

Fees 

A table presenting the proposed fee for the US281/US83 Interchange Traffic Operations Analyses 

including all direct cost is provided in Table 2. 

Table 2. Proposed Project Fees 

LABOR
Task 1 Project Management $5,799

Task 2 Existing Information Review $4,278

Task 3 Data Collection $5,342

Task 4 Traffic Projections $14,764

Task 5 Traffic Operations Analysis $14,989

Task 6 Documentation $12,535

Total Labor $57,706

DIRECT EXPENSES *

C&M Associates
Travel $1,000

  Total C&M $1,000 $1,000

Sub consultants
Filed Work and Surveys

Data Collection $20,000
Total Direct Cost $20,000

Total Expenses (includes sub consultants) $21,000

Total Cost for Project $78,706
*Direct expenses are estimates. Client will be billed at actual cost.  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 6A 



 
 
 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                      AGENDA ITEM                   6A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          8/08/12                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       8/15/12  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  TABLED ITEM - ACCEPTANCE OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 REPORT 

FROM DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING         
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and acceptance of report produced by Dannenbaum Engineering under work  

authorization number 1.           
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy          
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:       
    

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to accept report as presented.      
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: August 2, 2012 

Re: Tabled Item - Acceptance of Report Produced by Dannenbaum Engineering 
Under Work Authorization No. 1   

Attached is the report produced by Dannenbaum Engineering under work authorization number 1.  
 
The scope of authorization number 1 required a status report from the Program Manager and his 
opinion on the adequacy of existing documents; remaining tasks to complete existing documents; 
Authority’s development cost to date and projected cost to complete, as well as, engineer’s opinion on 
industry standard cost for similar scope. 
 
Based on review by this office, acceptance of the report produced by Dannenbaum Engineering is 
recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

FINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS 

AND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST  

DOCUMENTATION: FROM HCRMA INCEPTION  

THROUGH 12/31/2011 

PREPARED BY: 
DANNENBAUM 
ENGINEERING CORPORATION 

MAY 16, 2012 



1 

 



2 

 

1. It is the Program Management Consultant’s (PMC’s) opinion that the HCRMA Received a 
Negative Deviation from an Industry Standard Fee in the range of -$1,240,873.  The negative 
deviation is mainly due to the lack of Program Management and inefficiencies in the Environmental process.  
However, the negative deviation is within the tolerance of accuracy based on document completion. 

▪ In the table above note that a zero dollar deviation means the HCRMA received adequate value       
while a negative deviation means the HCRMA received less than industry standard value.  

▪ Items that add value or push the deviation closer zero or above include:  

 Development of Transportation Reinvestment Zone (TRZ) 
 TxDOT Pass Thru Application for SH 365 (TCC) 
 TxDOT Pass Thru Application for US 281/Military Overpass 
 SIB Loan by HCRB (prepared but never submitted, received from HCRMA Legal Counsel on 04/25/2012) 

▪ Items that remove value or push the deviation further from a zero to a greater negative value (if utilizing industry 
standard definition of “Program Manager”): 
 Development of Documents/Cost Controls 
 Development of Strategic Plan 
 Development of Project Management Plan 
 Development of QC/QA Plan for Design/Construction  
 Assist Newly Formed Agency in Developing Files and Operational Procedures 

FINAL EFINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGSXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS  
AND THE REVIEW OF HIAND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST DOCUMENTATION: STORIC COST DOCUMENTATION:   

FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011  
AFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTAFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTS DATED MAY 14, 2012S DATED MAY 14, 2012  

(Further Detail Refer to Attachment A—Backup for Executive Summary of Findings) 

Project Section Project 
Code

PMC Projected 
Construction Cost 

From Strategic 
Plans

PMC Projected 
Industry Standard 

Fee % of 
Construction Cost

PMC Projected Total 
Industry Standard 
Fees to Perform 

Services

Total Fees Expended 
(Incld. Prog./Proj. 

Mgt.) From HCRMA 
Inception to 
12/31/2011

PMC % of Total 
Project Industry 

Standard Fee 
Expended

PMC Estimated % 
Completion of 

Contract 
Deliverables

Value in $USD 
Received from 

Project Deliverables 
Based on Projected 
Industry Standard 

Fee

Deviation in $USD 
from the Projected 
Industry Standard 

Fee (A $0 Deviation 
Meets Industry 

Standard)

% Deviated from 
Industry Standard 
(A 0% Deviation 
Meets Industry 

Standard)

$USD Percent $USD $USD Percent Percent $USD $USD Percent

International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) 0010 144,586,615$           13.7% 19,858,972$               3,704,029$                   18.7% 18.2% 3,620,088$                 (83,942)$                       -2.3%

International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) 
(US 83/FM 495 Connector)(Jug Handles) 0014 10,500,000$             14.1% 1,475,250$                 681,920$                       46.2% 49.5% 730,275$                     48,355$                        7.1%

US 281 Military Hwy Overpass 0020 13,536,866$             14.0% 1,901,929$                 367,777$                       19.3% 17.5% 333,685$                     (34,092)$                       -9.3%

SH 365 - Trade Corridor Connector (TCC) 
(Excluding GSA/Anzalduas Option) 0030 137,460,496$           13.2% 18,158,530$               2,716,379$                   15.0% 14.9% 2,712,096$                 (4,284)$                         -0.2%

SH 365 - Trade Corridor Connector (TCC) 
(GSA/Anzalduas Option) 0030A 30,880,085$             14.0% 4,322,441$                 2,709,124$                   62.7% 83.8% 3,622,273$                 913,149$                      33.7%

SH 365 - Trade Corridor Connector Seg 3 
(Future Segment From FM 1016 to 
Anzalduas Rd)

0033 18,000,000$             13.2% 2,377,800$                 497,236$                       20.9% 15.9% 377,640$                     (119,596)$                     -24.1%

Section A West 0040 79,296,000$             13.2% 10,475,002$               1,237,096$                   11.8% 13.5% 1,413,848$                 176,752$                      14.3%

La Joya Relief Route 0050 76,490,566$             13.2% 10,104,404$               25,000$                         0.2% 0.2% 25,000$                       -$                               0.0%

Section C 0060 286,560,000$           13.2% 37,854,576$               2,912,503$                   7.7% 6.9% 2,610,562$                 (301,940)$                     -10.4%

Section D 0070 191,040,000$           13.2% 25,236,384$               1,731,380$                   6.9% 6.2% 1,560,796$                 (170,584)$                     -9.9%

Section F 0080 211,200,000$           13.2% 27,899,520$               2,276,653$                   8.2% 6.0% 1,660,032$                 (616,621)$                     -27.1%

Section E 0090 123,552,000$           13.2% 16,321,219$               1,394,189$                   8.5% 6.0% 971,119$                     (423,071)$                     -30.3%

1,323,102,628$        13.3% 175,986,027$             20,253,287$                 11.5% 11.2% 19,637,414$               (615,873)$                     -3.0%

 $                    (615,873)

 ADDITION TO 
DEVIATION 

400,000$                      

25,000$                        

25,000$                        

25,000$                        

TOTAL ADDITION TO INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE DEVIATION 475,000$                      

 REDUCTION TO 
DEVIATION 

1.  Development/Implementation/Maintenance of Documents/Cost Controls
2.  Development of Strategic Plan
3.  Development of Project Management Plan (Required by TxDOT Pass Thru Agreement)
4.  Development of QC/QA Plan for Design and Construction (Required by TxDOT Pass Thru Agreement)
5.  Assist Newly Formed Agency in Developing Files and Operational Procedures

TOTAL REDUCTION TO INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE DEVIATION (1,100,000)$                 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT TO INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE DEVIATION (625,000)$                     

(1,240,873)$                 -6.1%

TOTAL DEVIATION FROM THE PROJECTED INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE (A $0 DEVIATION MEETS INDUSTRY STANDARD)

TOTAL ADJUSTED DEVIATION FROM THE PROJECTED INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE ASSUMING INDUSTRY STANDARD DEFINITION OF "PROGRAM MANAGER"

I.  SERVICES LISTED IN HCRB CONTRACT NOT NORMALLY PERFORMED WITHIN INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE

II.  SERVICES TYPICALLY PERFORMED UNDER PROGRAM MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NORMALLY WITHIN INDUSTRY STANDARD FEE BUT WERE NOT PERFORMED UNDER HCRB CONTRACT

(1,100,000)$                 

2.  TxDOT Pass Thru Application for TCC (SH 365)

4.  SIB Loan Application

1.  Development of Transportation Reinvestment Zone (TRZ)

3.  TxDOT Pass Thru Application for US 281/Military Overpass

PROGRAM TOTAL

Summary of Project Cost Evaluation with Corresponding Deviation from Industry Standard Fee – From HCRMA Inception to 12/31/2011
(Excluding HCRMA Administration/Legal/Accounting/Special Consultants/T&R Studies/Financial Advisors)



3 

 

2. Summary of Findings: 

▪ It is the PMC’s opinion that the technical deliverables submitted were preliminary 
in nature and are technically adequate; and that the HCRMA received adequate 
value from these documents.  

▪ The remaining tasks and projected cost to perform those tasks can be found in the strategic plan 
located in the Capital Improvement Plan.  

▪ The PMC’s opinion differs is that the HCRB contract should be reviewed as a professional 
services contract due to the fact that the HCRB contract was procured utilizing the professional 
services procurement act regulations and the majority (if not all) of the expenditures were on 
professional services. As a result, reviewing the HCRB contract for value utilizing the PMC’s 
stated approach is valid.  

▪ Since the HCRMA was a new agency with no staff, it is the opinion of the PMC that this would 
imply that the HCRB would also be the HCRMA’s staff and produce the industry standard items 
typically included in a program management contract (i.e. document control standards). 

▪ HCRB contract stated they would follow all rules normally included in a standard TxDOT Pass-
Thru Agreement. 

▪ TxDOT Pass-Thru Agreements require the HCRMA prepare and obtain approval of a project 
management plan as well as a QA/QC plan for design and construction.  TxDOT will not review 
any pass-thru documents or provide any reimbursement without approval of these plans.  

▪ The PMC found no evidence that Project Management or QA/QC Plans were prepared and/or 
presented to the Board for formal adoption.   

▪ The PMC found no evidence of preparation of a Public Outreach Plan as outlined in the HCRB 
contract.  It should be noted that HCRB did hold numerous public meetings in accordance with 
TxDOT/FHWA environmental requirements.  

▪ The PMC found no evidence that the HCRMA or any consultant hired by the HCRMA had set up 
document, financial or any form of project controls which would typically be done by HCRMA 
staff or a Program Manager.   

▪ The PMC received no documents providing evidence or level of effort expended by HCRB to 
pursue legislative efforts to clean up the RMA statute and the TRZ statute to clarify financing 
opportunities.   

▪ The PMC received no documents providing evidence or level of effort expended by HCRB to 
obtain resolutions of support from the relevant cities to adopt truck ordinances.  

▪ The PMC received no documents providing evidence or level of effort expended by HCRB to 
create a County right-of-way plan.  

▪ The PMC received no documents providing evidence or level of effort expended by HCRB to 
develop a strategic plan.   

▪ HCRB was required by contract to obtain approval of all their subconsultant contracts by the 
Authority before execution by HCRB, and before subconsultants were to begin work.  The PMC 
requested copies of HCRB’s  subconsultant contracts, but Pate Transportation Partners (acting 
on behalf of HCRB) took the position that documents in the possession of HCRB’s 
subconsultants were not public information, however PMC received said documents on May 16, 

FINAL EFINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS XECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS   
AND THE REVIEW OF HIAND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST DOCUMENTATION: STORIC COST DOCUMENTATION:   

FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011  
AFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTAFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTS DATED MAY 14, 2012S DATED MAY 14, 2012  



4 

 

2012 from HCRB.  The HCRMA approved payments that contained subconsultant fees, which 
could constitute approval of said subconsultant contracts.  

▪ The HCRMA contracted Everett Owens, P.E., for transportation planning; finance and project 
implementation services including contract negotiations during the majority of the time the 
HCRB contract was active. Mr. Owen stated that just three (3) days before the phone call he had 
disposed of all of his HCRMA files. 

▪ The PMC found no evidence that any of the HCRMA’s contracted firms made sure the newly 
created HCRMA had files and documents for its own use.  This would have been a normal task by 
a program manager, and it is the opinion of the PMC that any firm contracted to perform 
Program Management Services should have assisted the HCRMA in this task. 

▪ When both HCRB and Owen Everett contracts were terminated, both parties left with all 
documents and the HCRMA was left with no files, only project deliverables.  As a result, it is very 
difficult for the PMC or anyone else to truly understand the facts or any changes that might have 
occurred. 

▪ All of the PMC’s evaluation had to be accomplished utilizing prime consultant contracts; project 
deliverables; project invoices and files provided by L&G Consultant Engineers, Inc. and Atkins of 
North America.  The files L&G’s provided to the PMC strictly contained project deliverables and 
working files to derive those deliverables. 

▪ It should be noted that when beginning the evaluation under the PMC WA No. 1, the PMC 
requested all information from the HCRMA’s Legal Counsel for use in the evaluation. However, 
this request was deemed by Counsel to violate the client/attorney privilege and as a result only 
select information was provided.  

▪ It is the opinion of the PMC that the overall program management was lacking which resulted in 
several inefficiencies because of a lack of proper program management that would have produced 
a complete record of: project management decisions, day-to-day files, and an a set of financial 
controls that would provide an organized listing of program expenditures.  



5 

 



6 

 

PROJ CODE 0000 0000 0010 0014 0020 0030 0030A SUB TOTAL

SECTION
GEN MGT

(G&A COSTS)

GEN MGT 

(SPEC. CONSULT.)
IBTC

IBTC SEG4

US 83 CONN.

TO SH 495

US 281 SH 365 (TCC)

SH 365 (TCC) 

GSA CONN. AT 

ANZALDUAS

0000 ‐ 0030A

TOTAL $1,390,782 $2,398,377 $3,704,029 $681,920 $367,777 $2,716,379 $2,709,124 $13,968,388

PROJ CODE 0033 0040 0050 0060 0070 0080 0090 SUB TOTAL

SECTION
SH 365 (TCC) 

SEG3
SECT A LA JOYA SECT C SECT D SECT F SECT E 0033 ‐ 0090

TOTAL $497,236 $1,237,096 $25,000 $2,912,503 $1,731,380 $2,276,653 $1,394,189 $10,074,058

TOTAL

0000 ‐ 0090

$24,042,446

3. Summary of Findings: 

Funds Received by Each Firm 

Funds Expended on Each Section* 

Excludes Debt Service  to FNB of $3,160,931 

* General Mgt. (G&A) and General Mgt. (Special Consult., T&R, Financial Advisors) were treated as 
   their own (overall) section.  Program Management expenses are included in each project section.  

FINAL EFINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGSXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS  
AND THE REVIEW OF HIAND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST DOCUMENTATION: STORIC COST DOCUMENTATION:   

FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011  
AFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTAFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTS DATED MAY 14, 2012S DATED MAY 14, 2012  

NO. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES TOTAL NO. VENDOR / FIRM TOTAL

01 AMADEO SAENZ APPRECIATION DINNER 200$                           32 BLANTON & ASSOCIATES 9,984$                       

02 BORDER TRADE ALLIANCE 375$                           33 C&M ASSOCIATES 1,365,039$               

03 CENTER FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT 270$                           34 CENTER FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT 270$                          

04 COPY ZONE 1,167$                        35 DANIEL G. RIOS (ATTY.) 60,798$                     

05 DENNIS BURLESON 6,392$                        36 DANNENBAUM ENG. CORP. (PMC) 270,646$                  

06 FED EX 314$                           37 DOS LAND SURVEYING 40,000$                     

07 FORREST RUNNELS 132$                           38 ENTECH CIVIL ENGINEERS 166,623$                  

08 HCRMA 39,949$                      39 FIRST SOUTHWEST 29,880$                     

09 HIDALGO COUNTY 90,822$                      40 HIDALGO CO. ROAD BUILDERS 5,167,485$               

10 HIDALGO CO. MPO 4,487$                        41 H&L ENGINEERING & TESTING, INC. 10,000$                     

11 IBTTA 5,050$                        42 INTEG CORPORATION 235,313$                  

12 JUAN MALDONADO 2,548$                        43 J E SAENZ & ASSOCIATES ENG. 2,200,000$               

13 LA JOYA ISD 375$                           44 LEONEL GARZA JR. & 17,500$                     

14 LRGVDC 271,638$                   45 L&G  CONSULTING ENG. 8,677,807$               

15 LRGVDC METRO 400$                           46 LONG CHILTON, LLP 55,000$                     

16 MCALLEN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 50$                             47 OWENS CONSULTING (EXEC. DIR.) 183,339$                  

17 MCALLEN ECON. DEV. CORP 15,000$                      48 PAS PROPERTY ACQUISITION SERV 589,000$                  

18 MICHAEL G. CANO 3,540$                        49 PBS&J (ATKINS) 1,568,377$               

19 MISSION EDA 150$                           50 PSE PAVEMENT SYSTEMS ENG. 13,650$                     

20 OFFICE DEPOT 2,373$                        51 RBC CAPITAL MARKETS 70,617$                     

21 PREMIER AWARDS 24$                             52 RODS SURVEYING 602,725$                  

22 RAMON GARCIA 636$                           53 SAN JACINTO ENTERPRISE LLC 500,000$                  

23 RAMIRO SALAZAR 7,024$                        54 S&B  INFRASTRUCTURE 703,667$                  

24 RGV MOBILITY TASK FORCE 7,500$                        55 SALINAS,ALLEN & SCHMITT, LLP 57,984$                     

25 RICARDO PEREZ 7,163$                        56 TRPSA ATTORNEY AT LAW 735,776$                  

26 TEAM TEXAS 2,375$                        57 TUGGEY FERNANDEZ,LLP 135,343$                  

27 THE MONITOR 2,187$                        58 VICTOR O SCHINERER 6,873$                       

28 TML GOV RISK POOL 2,183$                        59 VINSON & ELKINS 48,624$                     

29 TTI‐F10 1,000$                        60 WILBUR SMITH ASSOCIATES 40,909$                     

30 TTI‐F09 800$                           SUB TOTAL (32 ‐ 60) 23,563,228$             

31 VERIZON 3,365$                        TOTAL (01 ‐ 60) 24,042,716$             

SUB TOTAL (01 ‐ 31) 479,488$                  



7 

 

4. PMC—Status of Deliverables: 

▪ The following 7 major manuals and reports were packaged as part of the Program Manager’s 
Work Authorization No. 1 deliverables and are listed in the table below.  

▪ Two of the reports include additional volumes to expand details relating to: 
 Contracts, Copies of Invoices and Invoice Summaries that are the back up for the “Review 

of Historic Project Cost Documentation: From HCRMA Inception to 12/31/2011” 
 Strategic Plan Development for Strategies 1 Original, 1 New, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 in order 

to show the evolution of the analysis before adopting Strategy 8 with 4 lanes.  

▪ Due to space constraints at the current HCRMA office the Executive Director has requested and 
examined the deliverables for completeness and has requested the reports / manuals be 
delivered to him while the larger volumes with extended backup will be kept at the Program 
Manager’s office.  

No. Manual	/	Report	Title Doc.	Name Resource	Type 

01 Project Management Plan (PMP) PM-01 Program Management  
Manual, Required by TxDOT 

02 Project Control Plan PM-02 Program Management  
Manual 

03 Review of Historic Project Cost 
Documentation: From HCRMA Inception 
to 12/31/2011 

PM-03 Financial Report 

04 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) PM-04 Financial Report, Required 
by TxDOT for consideration 
of: 
1. Extension on Passthrough 

Funding (PTF) 
2. Reallocation of the US 281 

and La Joya PTF to SH 
365 (Modified TCC) 

05 Design Quality Management Plan 
(Design QMP) 

PM-05 Quality Management Manual, 
Required by TxDOT 

06 Construction Quality Management Plan 
(Construction QMP) 

PM-06 Quality Management Manual, 
Required by TxDOT 

07 Survey Manual PW-01 Survey Manual 

FINAL EFINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS XECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS   
AND THE REVIEW OF HIAND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST DOCUMENTATION: STORIC COST DOCUMENTATION:   

FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011  
AFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTAFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTS DATED MAY 14, 2012S DATED MAY 14, 2012  



8 

 



9 

 



10 

 

5. Recommendations: 

▪ Adopt Strategy No. 8 which has the Modified TCC operational by 05/2017 and the Modified 
IBTC Operational by 07/2019. Refer to the HCRMA Capital Improvement Plan for more details.  

▪ Move forward on executing the Strategic Plan No. 8 approved in March 2012. 

▪ Approve the PMC (with Approval of WA No. 4) to move the HCRMA forward with 
implementation of the plans submitted under Work Authorization No.1, under the guidance of 
the Executive Director.  

▪ Present findings and strategic plan to Hidalgo County and obtain required approval to finance 
the development of Strategic Plan No. 8. 

▪ Negotiate with TxDOT the required changes to the TxDOT Pass-Thru Agreements to allow 
project development as presented in Strategic Plan No.8. (Consolidate all Pass-Thru Funds, 
$112.1M, onto SH 365 / Modified TCC); includes extending designation of SH 365 (Modified 
TCC) to US 281 Military Highway. 

▪ Move forward with the required consultant contracts to implement Strategic Plan No. 8. 

▪ Negotiate with the City of Pharr (Pharr Bridge) and Anzalduas Bridge Board on connection 
points for SH 365 (Modified TCC). 

▪ Develop and implement additional project controls that will complement the organizational 
development of the HCRMA and transition day-to-day tasks to HCRMA staff as soon as it is 
feasible.  

▪ Develop and implement a public outreach plan.  

▪ Prioritize the development of consistent financial reporting of on-going development activity (by 
project section) to the HCRMA Board in order to provide comprehensive financial information 
to assist their decision making. 

▪ The HCRMA should consider branding their projects as “Loop 365” with all project segments 
utilizing this designation instead of project section names such as Modified IBTC, for example.  
This was done in places such as Houston (Loop 610) and San Antonio (Loop 410) with great 
success and provides a unified long term vision to the public and all stakeholders.   

FINAL EFINAL EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGSXECUTIVE SUMMARY FINDINGS  
AND THE REVIEW OF HIAND THE REVIEW OF HISTORIC COST DOCUMENTATION: STORIC COST DOCUMENTATION:   

FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011FROM HCRMA INCEPTION THROUGH 12/31/2011  
AFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTAFTER REVIEW OF HCRMA MANAGEMENT COMMENTS DATED MAY 14, 2012S DATED MAY 14, 2012  



 

 

P: (956) 969-5822 

F: (956) 969-5821 


	Agenda & Notice
	Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for July, 17, 2012, July 18, 2012 and August 2, 2012.
	Item 2B - Approval of Expense Report for July 11, 2012 to August 7, 2012.
	Item 2C - Approval of Financial Report for the month of June 2012.
	Item 3A - Resolution 2012-26 - Approval of Dannenbaum Engineering Work Authorization Number 5. 
	Item 3B - Approval of Amendment with First Southwest to add a Level of Service Analysis for SH 365 and at Traffic Operations Analysis for US 281/US 83 Interchange as part of the T&R Study for SH 365, IBTC, Segment D and La Joya Relief Route.
	Item 6A - Tabled Item - Acceptance of Work Authorization No. 1 Report from Dannenbaum Engineering.



